
__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska: October 12, 2021, City Council Regular Meeting Agenda Page 1 of 2 

City of Palmer, Alaska 
Regular City Council Meeting 

October 12, 2021, at 7:00 PM 
City Council Chambers 

231 W. Evergreen Avenue, Palmer 
www.palmerak.org 

AGENDA 

A. CALL TO ORDER

B. ROLL CALL

C. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

D. APPROVAL OF AGENDA
1. Approval of Consent Agenda

a. Introduction and Setting a Public Hearing to October 26, 2021, for Ordinance No. 21-017:
Amending Palmer Municipal Code 4.15.060 to Modify Residency Requirements For Certain
Employee Positions

b. Introduction and Setting a Public Hearing to October 26, 2021, for Ordinance No. 21-018:
Amending Palmer Municipal Code 2.04.065 to Modify the Appointment Process

c. Resolution No. 21-035: Requesting Purchase Order for Vehicle Under the 2022 State of Alaska
Purchasing Program

d. Action Memorandum No. 21-056: Directing the City Manager to Notify the State of Alaska
of the City Council’s Statement of Non-Objection of the Winery License Number #5985 for the
Bleeding Heart Brewery located at 562 S Denali Street

e. Action Memorandum No. 21-057: Approving a Council Community Grant to The Ice Maze,
LLC

f. Action Memorandum No. 21-058: Directing the City Manager to Notify the State of Alaska
of the City Council’s Statement of Non-Objection for Alaska State Fair, Inc Liquor License No. 39
of Licensed Premises Diagram Change of the Sluice Box

g. Action Memorandum No. 21-059: Authorizing the Mayor to Execute the City Clerk’s
Employment Agreement with Shelly Acteson

2. Approval of Minutes of Previous Meetings
a. August 24, 2021, Regular Meeting

E. COMMUNICATIONS AND APPEARANCE REQUESTS

F. REPORTS
1. City Manager’s Report
2. Mayor’s Report
3. City Clerk’s Report
4. City Attorney’s Report

G. AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION

H. PUBLIC HEARINGS

Mayor Edna B. DeVries 
Deputy Mayor Sabrena Combs 
Council Member Julie Berberich 
Council Member Richard W. Best 
Council Member Steve Carrington 
Council Member Brian Daniels 
Council Member Jill Valerius 

City Attorney Michael Gatti 
City Manager John Moosey 
Interim City Clerk Nichole Degner 

....................................................................................................Page  3

.............Page  7

.................................................................................................Page 11

.................................................Page 21

..........................................................................................................................Page 37

..............................................Page 45

...............................................................Page 55

..............................................................................Page 63

Page 1 of 68

http://www.palmerak.org/


__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska: October 12, 2021, City Council Regular Meeting Agenda Page 2 of 2 

I. UNFINISHED BUSINESS

J. NEW BUSINESS

K. RECORD OF ITEMS PLACED ON THE TABLE

L. AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION

M. EXECUTIVE SESSION
1. Matters, the Immediate Knowledge of Which Would Clearly Have an Adverse Effect Upon the Finances

of the Public Entity and Matter which by Law, Municipal Charter, or Ordinances are Required to be
Confidential – Potential Litigation Attorney Client Communication: Legal Review regarding Potential
Violation of State of Alaska Open Meetings Act Law

N. COUNCIL MEMBER COMMENTS

O. ADJOURNMENT

Tentative Future Palmer City Council Meetings 

Meeting 
Date 

Meeting 
Type Time Notes 

Oct 11 Special 6 pm Election Certification 

Oct 12 Regular 7 pm 
Oct 19 Special 6 pm Budget 

Oct 26 Special 6 pm Budget 
Oct 26 Regular 7 pm 
Nov 9 Special 6 pm Budget 
Nov 9 Regular 7 pm 

Nov 23 Special 6 pm Budget 
Nov 23 Regular 7 pm 

Page 2 of 68



City of Palmer, Alaska: Ordinance No. 21-017 Page 1 of 2 

City of Palmer  
Ordinance No. 21-017 

Subject:  Amending Palmer Municipal Code 4.15.060 to modify residency requirements for certain employee 
positions. 

Agenda of: October 12, 2021 

Council Action: ☐ Adopted ☐ Amended: ____________________________________
☐ Defeated

Originator Information: 

Originator: Mr. John Moosey, City Manager 
Department Review: 

Route to: Department Director: Signature: Date: 
Community Development 
Finance 
Fire 
Police 
Public Works 

Certification of Funds: 

Total amount of funds listed in this legislation: $ 

This legislation (√): 
Creates revenue in the amount of: $ 
Creates expenditure in the amount of: $ 
Creates a saving in the amount of: $ 

X Has no fiscal impact 

Funds are (√): 
Budgeted Line item(s): 
Not budgeted 

Director of Finance Signature: 

Approved for Presentation By: 
Signature: Remarks: 

City Manager 
City Attorney 
City Clerk 

Page 3 of 68



 

City of Palmer, Alaska: Ordinance No. 21-017 Page 2 of 2 

Attachment(s): 
1. Ordinance No. 21-017 

 
Summary Statement/Background:  
 
The City of Palmer has residency requirements for certain employee positions.  The City Council desires to modify 
that residency requirement for the City Clerk position. 
 
Currently Municipal Code 4.15.060 states:  

A. In accordance with the Charter, the city manager shall be a resident of the city during his or her 
tenure in office. 

B. The city clerk shall be a resident of the city during his or her tenure in office within 180 days of hire. 

C. All department directors, fire chief, and the police chief shall reside within five miles of the city limits 
within 180 days of hire. (Ord. 16-010 § 3, 2016; Ord. 12-001 § 3, 2013) 

 
The purpose of the Ordinance is to modify the City Clerk residency from within the City Corporation limits to 
within five (5) miles of the City of Palmer corporation limits. 
 
 
Administration’s Recommendation:  
 
Adopt Ordinance No. 21-017 
 
 

Page 4 of 68



 

City of Palmer, Alaska: Ordinance No. 21-017 Page 1 of 2 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

CITY OF PALMER, ALASKA 
 

Ordinance No. 21-017 
 
An Ordinance of the Palmer City Council Enacting 
 

WHEREAS, The City of Palmer seeks to attract the best candidates for the City Clerk; and 
 
WHEREAS, the housing market within the City of Palmer is at its highest demand, limiting available 

housing opportunities; and 
 
WHEREAS, the current five mile radius of the City of Palmer has been successful when applied to the 

City’s director positions. 
 
THE CITY OF PALMER, ALASKA, ORDAINS: 
 
 Section 1. Classification. This ordinance shall be permanent in nature and shall be incorporated into the 
Palmer Municipal Code.  
 
 Section 2. Severability. If any provisions of this ordinance or application thereof to any person or 
circumstances are held invalid, the remainder of this ordinance and the application to the other persons or 
circumstances shall not be affected thereby. 
 

Section 3. Palmer Municipal Code Section 4.15.060 is hereby amended to read as follows (new language 
is underlined and deleted language is stricken): 

A. In accordance with the Charter, the city manager shall be a resident of the city during his or 
her tenure in office. 

B. The city clerk shall be a resident of the city during his or her tenure in office within 180 days 
of hire. 

B. C. The city clerk, All all department directors, fire chief, and the police chief 
shall reside within five miles of the city limits within 180 days of hire. (Ord. 16-010 § 3, 2016; 
Ord. 12-001 § 3, 2013) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

LEGISLATIVE HISTORY 
Introduced by: City Manager Moosey 

Date: October 12, 2021 
Public Hearing: October 26, 2021 

Action:  
Vote:  

Yes: No: 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

Page 5 of 68



 

City of Palmer, Alaska: Ordinance No. 21-017 Page 2 of 2 

 
 

 
Section 4. Effective Date. Ordinance No. 21-017 shall take effect upon adoption by the city of Palmer 

City Council.  
 
Passed and approved this _____ day of _____, 2021.  
 
 

 
_________________________ 
Edna B. DeVries, Mayor 

 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Nichole Degner, Interim City Clerk 

Page 6 of 68



City of Palmer, Alaska: Ordinance No. 21-018 Page 1 of 2 

City of Palmer  
Ordinance No. 21-018 

Subject:  Amending Palmer Municipal Code 2.04.065 to modify the Appointment process 

Agenda of: October 12, 2021 

Council Action: ☐ Adopted  ☐ Amended: ____________________________________
☐ Defeated

Originator Information: 

Originator: Richard Best, Council Member     Steve Carrington, Council Member 
 

Department Review: 

Route to: Department Director: Signature: Date: 
Community Development 
Finance 
Fire 
Police 
Public Works 

Certification of Funds: 

Total amount of funds listed in this legislation: $ 

This legislation (√): 
Creates revenue in the amount of: $ 
Creates expenditure in the amount of: $ 
Creates a saving in the amount of: $ 
Has no fiscal impact 

Funds are (√): 
Budgeted Line item(s): 
Not budgeted 

Director of Finance Signature: 

Approved for Presentation By: 
Signature: Remarks: 

City Manager 
City Attorney 
City Clerk 

Page 7 of 68



 

City of Palmer, Alaska: Ordinance No. 21-018 Page 2 of 2 

Attachment(s): 
1. Ordinance No. 21-018 

 
Summary Statement/Background:  
 
Please accept this language as a way of correcting our code language to prevent gridlock when we have a 
vacancy on the council. This will allow for the mayor to make an appointment and for Council to have an 
opportunity to override a Mayoral appointment. We had a situation a few years ago where we utilized three city 
Council meetings trying to find a way to get members on board with appointing somebody for six weeks. This 
was ineffective and did not serve the public. 
 

2.04.065 
Appointments. 
  

A. When a vacancy occurs, except in the case of recall, the clerk shall publish public notice of the vacancy 
and, for 14 days after the first publication, receive applications from persons interested in being 
appointed to the vacant seat. The Council Mayor may review the applications and/or interview applicants 
in any reasonable public manner. Not later than 45 days after the seat is declared vacant, the council 
(Mayor) shall appoint from among the applicants a qualified person to fill the vacant seat; 
 
B. If less than 30 days remain in a term, the council Mayor shall appoint, using the process described in 
subsection (A) of this section, a qualified person to fill the vacancy no later than the second regular 
meeting following the election. Council may object and vote to override the appointment, if a majority 
votes to override the mayor’s appointment the appointment will not stand. The mayor would then be 
required to appoint another qualified candidate. 
 
C. If 31 or more days remain in the term and the notice of offices to be filled has already been advertised 
for the next regular election, the council Mayor shall appoint no later than the second regular meeting 
following the regular election. The clerk shall publish notice of the vacancy no later than 45 days prior to 
the first regular council meeting following the election and, for 14 days after the first publication, receive 
applications from persons interested in being appointed to the vacant seat. The council Mayor may 
review the applications and/or interview applicants in any reasonable public manner; 
 
D. Persons appointed to fill a vacancy shall serve until the next regular election, at which time a successor 
shall be elected to fulfill the remainder of the unexpired term of office; 
 
E. Notwithstanding subsection (A) of this section, if the council’s membership is reduced to fewer than 
four council members, then the remaining council members Mayor shall appoint as many qualified 
persons to the council as are necessary to once again constitute a quorum. The council Mayor shall utilize 
any procedure which is reasonable under the circumstances in making the appointments required by this 
subsection and shall make the appointments not later than seven days after the quorum was reduced to 
less than four members; 
 
F. Appointees shall qualify for and assume the duties of office within 10 days after appointment, unless 
such time is extended by the council Mayor for not more than 30 days. (Ord. 11-003 § 4, 2011; Ord. 648 § 
3, 2005) 

 
Administration’s Recommendation:  
 
Adopt Ordinance No. 21-018 
 
 

Page 8 of 68



 

City of Palmer, Alaska: Ordinance No. 21-018 Page 1 of 2 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

CITY OF PALMER, ALASKA 
 

Ordinance No. 21-018 
 
An Ordinance of the Palmer City Council Enacting 
 

WHEREAS, a vacancy on the council can cause voting gridlock; and 
 
WHEREAS, the council will retain the ability to override a Mayoral appointment. 

 
THE CITY OF PALMER, ALASKA, ORDAINS: 
 
 Section 1. Classification. This ordinance shall be permanent in nature and shall be incorporated into the 
Palmer Municipal Code.  
 
 Section 2. Severability. If any provisions of this ordinance or application thereof to any person or 
circumstances are held invalid, the remainder of this ordinance and the application to the other persons or 
circumstances shall not be affected thereby. 
 

Section 3. Palmer Municipal Code Section 2.04.065 is hereby amended to read as follows (new language 
is underlined and deleted language is stricken): 
 

A. When a vacancy occurs, except in the case of recall, the clerk shall publish public notice of the 
vacancy and, for 14 days after the first publication, receive applications from persons interested in being 
appointed to the vacant seat. The Council Mayor may review the applications and/or interview 
applicants in any reasonable public manner. Not later than 45 days after the seat is declared vacant, the 
council (Mayor) shall appoint from among the applicants a qualified person to fill the vacant seat; 
 
B. If less than 30 days remain in a term, the council Mayor shall appoint, using the process described in 
subsection (A) of this section, a qualified person to fill the vacancy no later than the second regular 
meeting following the election. Council may object and vote to override the appointment, if a majority 
votes to override the mayors appointment the appointment will not stand. The mayor would then be 
required to appoint another qualified candidate. 
 
C. If 31 or more days remain in the term and the notice of offices to be filled has already been 
advertised for the next regular election, the council Mayor shall appoint no later than the second regular 
meeting following the regular election. The clerk shall publish notice of the vacancy no later than 45 
days prior to the first regular council meeting following the election and, for 14 days after the first 
publication, receive applications from persons interested in being appointed to the vacant seat. The 

LEGISLATIVE HISTORY 
Introduced by: Richard Best, Steve 

Carrington 
Date: October 12, 2021 

Public Hearing: October 26, 2021 
Action:  

Vote:  
Yes: No: 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  

Page 9 of 68



 

City of Palmer, Alaska: Ordinance No. 21-018 Page 2 of 2 

council Mayor may review the applications and/or interview applicants in any reasonable public 
manner; 
 
D. Persons appointed to fill a vacancy shall serve until the next regular election, at which time a 
successor shall be elected to fulfill the remainder of the unexpired term of office; 
 
E. Notwithstanding subsection (A) of this section, if the council’s membership is reduced to fewer than 
four council members, then the remaining council members Mayor shall appoint as many qualified 
persons to the council as are necessary to once again constitute a quorum. The council Mayor shall 
utilize any procedure which is reasonable under the circumstances in making the appointments required 
by this subsection and shall make the appointments not later than seven days after the quorum was 
reduced to less than four members; 
 
F. Appointees shall qualify for and assume the duties of office within 10 days after appointment, unless 
such time is extended by the council Mayor for not more than 30 days. (Ord. 11-003 § 4, 2011; Ord. 648 
§ 3, 2005) 

 
 

Section 4. Effective Date. Ordinance No. 21-018 shall take effect upon adoption by the city of Palmer 
City Council.  
 
Passed and approved this ___ day of __________, 2021.  
 
 

 
_________________________ 
Edna B. DeVries, Mayor 

 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Nichole Degner, Interim City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

Page 10 of 68



City of Palmer, Alaska: Resolution No. 21-035 Page 1 of 2 

City of Palmer  
Resolution No. 21-035 

Subject:  Authorizing the City Manager to Submit Purchase Orders for Proposed New Vehicles Under the 2022 
State of Alaska Purchasing Program    

Agenda of: October 12, 2021 

Council Action: ☐ Approved ☐ Amended: ____________________________________
☐ Defeated

Originator Information: 

Originator: Mr. John Moosey, City Manager 
Department Review: 

Route to: Department Director: Signature: Date: 
X Community Development September 30, 2021 

Finance 
X Fire 9/30/2021 
X Police 10-1-2021

X Public Works 9/30/2021 

Certification of Funds: 

Total amount of funds listed in this legislation: $ 382,000 
 

This legislation (√): 
 Creates revenue in the amount of: $  
X Creates expenditure in the amount of: $ 382,000 (includes outfitting vehicles) 

Creates a saving in the amount of: $  
Has no fiscal impact 

Funds are (√): 
 Budgeted Line item(s): 
X Not budgeted Various Capital Accounts Fund 09 
 

Director of Finance Signature: 

Approved for Presentation By: 
Signature: Remarks: 

City Manager 
City Attorney 
City Clerk 

Page 11 of 68



 

City of Palmer, Alaska: Resolution No. 21-035 Page 2 of 2 

Attachment(s): 
1. Resolution No. 21-035 
2. WSJ 9/22/21 “For Auto Makers, the Chip Famine Will Persist.” 
3. Wraltechwire 9/28/21 “Bad News, Car Byers: Chip Shortage Chain Woes Are Worse Than We Thought.” 

 
Summary Statement/Background:  
 
At the September 14, 2021 City Council Meeting, the City Council gave City Manager Moosey authorization to 
bypass Municipal Code purchasing timeline requirements.  As of 9/29/21, an available truck has not been found.   
 
The State of Alaska operates a purchasing program that the City of Palmer has annually used to supply its needs.  
This program supplies the State, boroughs, and cities with a deep discount over retail sticker price.  The City 
Manager has been informed the 2022 program will close at the end of October 2021. This deadline creates a 
challenge whereupon operational timing does not coincide with code required timing. 
 
The City Manager is requesting approval to submit purchase orders to the State of Alaska purchasing program for 
the City of Palmer’s 2022 anticipated needs, prior to 2022 budgetary approval.  The actual purchase of the vehicles 
will be made after City Council approves each purchase through our normal process.  It is the City Manager’s 
belief that if the City Council does not approve of the vehicle purchase(s) that there will not be a cost to canceling 
the order.  
 
3.21.230 Governmental and proprietary procurements. 
A.  The purchasing officer may contract, without the use of the competitive source selection procedures of this 

chapter, for the following supplies, services, professional services or construction:  
1.  For contracts, including reimbursable agreements, with federal, state or local units of government or utility 

provider where the city has a financial responsibility or beneficial interest in entering into an agreement.  
2.  For contracts issued pursuant to any federal, state, or local government contract where the city is an 

authorized user, or where the resulting contractor agrees to extend the same terms, conditions, and pricing 
to the city as those awarded under the original contract, all in accordance with PMC 3.21.240. Such 
agreements shall be limited to those contracts where the award is issued pursuant to a formally advertised 
solicitation.  

3.  For contracts where the purchasing officer determines in writing that the city’s requirements reasonably 
limit the source for the supplies, services, professional service or construction to one person.  

B.  All contract awards under this section, and any amendments thereto, shall be subject to the applicable 
approval requirements of PMC 3.21.090 prior to execution.  

C.  No contractor may provide supplies, services, professional services, or construction to the city before the 
applicable requirements of this section are first satisfied. 

 
Administration’s Recommendation:  
 
Approve Resolution No. 21-035 
 
 

Page 12 of 68



 

City of Palmer, Alaska: Resolution No. 21-035 Page 1 of 1 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
CITY OF PALMER, ALASKA 

 
Resolution No. 21-035 

 
A Resolution of the Palmer City Council Authorizing the City Manager Authorizing the City Manager 
to Submit Purchase Orders for Proposed New Vehicles Under the 2022 State of Alaska Purchasing 
Program    

 
WHEREAS, The State of Alaska operates a purchasing program that offers deeply discounted pricing for 

vehicle purchases; and 
 
WHEREAS, The City has been informed the 2022 program will close on October 31, 2021; and 
 
WHEREAS, this deadline does not coincide with City of Palmer Municipal Code timing; and 
 
WHEREAS, not taking advantage of this program will create a significant negative financial and 

operational impact if the vehicles cannot be obtained. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, the Palmer City Council authorizes the City manager to submit 
purchase orders in anticipation of budget approval to meet the City of Palmer’s service needs. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, the submission of the purchase order does not permit 

purchase without following normal City of Palmer purchasing procedures followed and approved by the City 
Council. 
 
Approved by the Palmer City Council this 12th day of October 2021. 
 
 
 
 

________________________ 
Edna B. DeVries, Mayor 

 
_____________________________ 
Nichole Degner, Interim City Clerk 
 

LEGISLATIVE HISTORY 
Introduced by: City Manager Moosey 

Date: October 12, 2021 
Action:  

Vote:  
Yes: No: 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  

Page 13 of 68



Page 14 of 68



Page 15 of 68



Page 16 of 68



Page 17 of 68



Page 18 of 68



Page 19 of 68



Page 20 of 68



City of Palmer, Alaska: AM No. 21-056 Page 1 of 2 

City of Palmer 
Action Memorandum No. 21-056 

Subject:  Directing the City Manager to Notify the State of Alaska of the City Council’s Statement of Non-Objection 
of the Winery License Number #5985 for the Bleeding Heart Brewery located at 562 S Denali Street  

Agenda of: October 12, 2021 

Council Action: ☐ Approved ☐ Amended: ____________________________________
☐ Defeated

Originator Information: 

Originator: Mr. John Moosey, City Manager 
Department Review: 

Route to: Department Director: Signature: Date: 
Community Development 
Finance 
Fire 
Police 
Public Works 

Certification of Funds: 

Total amount of funds listed in this legislation: $ 

This legislation (√): 
x Creates revenue in the amount of: $ unknown 

Creates expenditure in the amount of: $ 
Creates a saving in the amount of: $ 
Has no fiscal impact 

Funds are (√): 
Budgeted Line item(s): 
Not budgeted 

Director of Finance Signature: 

Approved for Presentation By: 
Signature: Remarks: 

City Manager 
City Attorney 
City Clerk 

Page 21 of 68



 
City of Palmer, Alaska: AM No. 21-056 Page 2 of 2 

Attachment(s):  
1. City of Palmer LGB Notice #5985 Corrected 
2. #5985 AB-00 
3. #5985 AB-02 Diagram, Security Plan 

 
Summary Statement/Background:  
 
Bleeding Heart Brewery is requesting a Winery license. 
 
Per State law, a local governing body may protest the approval of an application pursuant to AS 04.11.480 by 
providing the applicant with a clear and concise written statement of the reason for the protest or may voice a 
non-objection to a request. 
 
Administration’s Recommendation:  
 
Approve Action Memorandum No. 21-056. 
 
 
 
 
 
  

Page 22 of 68



Page 23 of 68



 

 

 

Department of Commerce, Community, 
and Economic Development 
ALCOHOL & MARIJUANA CONTROL OFFICE 

550 West 7th Avenue, Suite 1600 
Anchorage, AK 99501 

Main: 907.269.0350

 
September 8, 2021 
 
City of Palmer 
Attn:  City Clerk   
Via Email:   cityclerk@palmerak.org  
Cc: adam.bradway@matsugov.us 
 
License Type: Winery  License Number: 5985 
Licensee: Bleeding Heart Brewery, LLC. 
Doing Business As: Bleeding Heart Brewery 
Premises Address: 562 S Denali St Palmer, AK 99645 

  
☒ New Application ☐ Transfer of Ownership Application  
☐ Transfer of Location Application ☐ Transfer of Controlling Interest Application 
                     
We have received a completed application for the above listed license (see attached application 
documents) within your jurisdiction. This is the notice required under AS 04.11.480. 
 
A local governing body may protest the approval of an application(s) pursuant to AS 04.11.480 by 
furnishing the director and the applicant with a clear and concise written statement of reasons for the 
protest within 60 days of receipt of this notice, and by allowing the applicant a reasonable opportunity to 
defend the application before a meeting of the local governing body, as required by 3 AAC 304.145(d). If 
a protest is filed, the board will deny the application unless the board finds that the protest is arbitrary, 
capricious, and unreasonable. To protest the application referenced above, please submit your protest 
within 60 days and show proof of service upon the applicant. 
 
AS 04.11.491 – AS 04.11.509 provide that the board will deny a license application if the board finds that 
the license is prohibited under as a result of an election conducted under AS 04.11.507. 
 
AS 04.11.420 provides that the board will not issue a license when a local governing body protests an 
application on the grounds that the applicant’s proposed licensed premises are located in a place within 
the local government where a local zoning ordinance prohibits the alcohol establishment, unless the 
local government has approved a variance from the local ordinance. 
  
Sincerely, 
 
Glen Klinkhart, Director 
amco.localgovernmentonly@alaska.gov  
  

Page 24 of 68

mailto:cityclerk@palmerak.org
mailto:adam.bradway@matsugov.us
mailto:amco.localgovernmentonly@alaska.gov


Page 25 of 68



Page 26 of 68



Page 27 of 68



Page 28 of 68



Page 29 of 68



Page 30 of 68



Page 31 of 68



Page 32 of 68



Page 33 of 68



Page 34 of 68



Page 35 of 68



Page 36 of 68



City of Palmer, Alaska: AM No. 21-057 Page 1 of 2 

City of Palmer 
Action Memorandum No. 21-057 

Subject:  Approving a Council Community Grant to The Ice Maze, LLC 

Agenda of: October 12, 2021 

Council Action: ☐ Approved ☐ Amended: ____________________________________
☐ Defeated

Originator Information: 

Originator: Mr. John Moosey, City Manager 
Department Review: 

Route to: Department Director: Signature: Date: 
Community Development 
Finance 
Fire 
Police 
Public Works 

Certification of Funds: 

Total amount of funds listed in this legislation: $ Up to 12,000 
 

This legislation (√): 
Creates revenue in the amount of: $ 
Creates expenditure in the amount of: $ 
Creates a saving in the amount of: $ 
Has no fiscal impact 

Funds are (√): 
√ Budgeted Line item(s): 01-02-10-6068 Community Council Grants Remaining Funds $5,750 

Not budgeted 

Director of Finance Signature: 

Approved for Presentation By: 

Signature: Remarks: 

City Manager 
City Attorney 
City Clerk 

Page 37 of 68



 
City of Palmer, Alaska: AM No. 21-057 Page 2 of 2 

Attachment(s):  
1. Council Community Grant Application 

 
Summary Statement/Background:  
 
Cory Livingood, The Ice Maze LLC, has built and managed ice attractions throughout North America at ski resorts 
in small remote towns, and city centers in large metropolitan areas.   
 
The Ice Maze will be The World’s Largest Ice Maze, registered with Guinness Book of World Records. It will be .5 
acre in size with 6 ft walls of solid ice. Lights will be frozen into the ice.  
 
The Ice Maze will be constructed at the end of the Bright up the Night drive through light show held at the Alaska 
State Fairgrounds. Construction will begin in November and weather permitting, it will be open to the public in 
December. There is historical data to support that it could stay in place as late as March. 
 
The Ice Maze has requested up to $12,000 for this project that has the potential to bring thousands of visitors to 
Palmer during the winter. Increased visitors will positively impact local businesses which will have a positive impact 
on the economy of the City of Palmer. Cory Livingood will create the maze and be in attendance daily to talk with 
the guests, answering questions. The Fairgrounds will hire two employees to handle tickets. 
 
Per Palmer Municipal Code 2.04.160(F), I have reviewed the application for completeness, and am forwarding the 
application to City Council for Council’s consideration. 
 
In February, 2014, the City Council adopted Ordinance No. 14-043, which established the Council Community 
Grant Program. The City Council approved $12,000.00 in the Community Council Grants line item for 2021. 
 
Legislation # Organization Amount Requested Remaining Date Approved 
 Beginning Balance-2021 Budget  $12,000.00  
AM 21-017 Hatcher Pass Avalanche Center $5,000.00 $7,000.00 3/9/21 
AM 21-026 Who Let the Runners Out $1,000.00 $6,000.00 4/13/21 
AM 21-033 Alaska Farmland Trust $250.00 $5,750.00 5/11/21 
AM 21-057 The Ice Maze Up to $12,000.00   
     
     

 
Administration’s Recommendation:  
 
Approve Action Memorandum No. 21-057.  
 
 
 
 
 
  

Page 38 of 68



Page 39 of 68



Page 40 of 68



Page 41 of 68



Page 42 of 68



Page 43 of 68



Page 44 of 68



City of Palmer, Alaska: AM No. 21-058 Page 1 of 2 

City of Palmer 
Action Memorandum No. 21-058 

Subject:  Directing the City Manager to Notify the State of Alaska of the City Council’s Statement of Non-Objection 
for Alaska State Fair, Inc Liquor License No. 39 of Licensed Premises Diagram Change of the Sluicebox. 

Agenda of: October 22, 2021 

Council Action: ☐ Approved ☐ Amended: ____________________________________
☐ Defeated

Originator Information: 

Originator: Mr. John Moosey, City Manager 
Department Review: 

Route to: Department Director: Signature: Date: 
X Community Development October 4, 2021 

Finance 
Fire 

X Police October 4, 2021 
Public Works 

Certification of Funds: 

Total amount of funds listed in this legislation: $ 

This legislation (√): 
Creates revenue in the amount of: $ 
Creates expenditure in the amount of: $ 
Creates a saving in the amount of: $ 
Has no fiscal impact 

Funds are (√): 
Budgeted Line item(s): 
Not budgeted 

Director of Finance Signature: 

Approved for Presentation By: 
Signature: Remarks: 

City Manager 
City Attorney 
City Clerk 

Page 45 of 68



 
City of Palmer, Alaska: AM No. 21-058 Page 2 of 2 

Attachment(s):  
1. #39 AB-14 Sluicebox 

 
Summary Statement/Background:  
 
Alaska State Fair is requesting to alter the functional floor plan of the Sluicebox.  
 
Per State law, a local governing body may protest the approval of an application pursuant to AS 04.11.480 by 
providing the applicant with a clear and concise written statement of the reason for the protest or may voice a 
non-objection to a request. 
 
Administration’s Recommendation:  
 
Approve Action Memorandum No. 21-058. 
 
 
 
 
 
  

Page 46 of 68



Page 47 of 68



P
ag

e 
48

 o
f 

68



P
ag

e 
49

 o
f 

68



Page 50 of 68



Page 51 of 68



Page 52 of 68



Page 53 of 68



1 
 

City of Palmer ● Liquor License Review Form   
 

BUSINESS NAME: Alaska State Fair OWNER: Alaska State Fair 
 

LICENSE TYPE: AB-14 Licensed Premises Diagram Change for the Sluice Box, License #39 
 

LOCATION: 2075 Glenn Highway 
 

 
Route to:  Department of Finance 

Department of Finance 
Business License/Sales Tax/ 
Utilities/Assessments Current:   

 
Yes  No 

 

If no, explain:  
  
 

Other Comments: 
 
 
 
   
Finance Director  Date 

 
Route to: Department of Community Development 

Department of Community Development 
Code (PMC/Bldg/Fire) Compliant:    Yes  No 
 

If no, explain:  
  
 

Other Comments: 
 
 
 

   
Community Development Director  Date 

 
Route to: Police Department 

Police Department 
Excessive Calls:    Yes  No 
 

If yes, explain:  
  
 

Other Comments: 
 
  
Chief of Police  Date 

 
TO COUNCIL FOR AGENDA OF:  September 08, 2020 

Page 54 of 68



City of Palmer, Alaska: AM No. 21-059 Page 1 of 2 

City of Palmer 
Action Memorandum No. 21-059 

Subject:  Authorizing the Mayor to Execute the City Clerk’s Employment Agreement with Shelly Acteson. 
Agenda of: Month Day, Year 

Council Action: ☐ Approved ☐ Amended: ____________________________________
☐ Defeated

Originator Information: 

Originator: John Moosey, City Manager 
Department Review: 

Route to: Department Director: Signature: Date: 
Community Development 
Finance 
Fire 
Police 
Public Works 

Certification of Funds: 

Total amount of funds listed in this legislation: $ 

This legislation (√): 
Creates revenue in the amount of: $ 
Creates expenditure in the amount of: $ 
Creates a saving in the amount of: $ 
Has no fiscal impact 

Funds are (√): 
Budgeted Line item(s): 
Not budgeted 

Director of Finance Signature: 

Approved for Presentation By: 
Signature: Remarks: 

City Manager 
City Attorney 
City Clerk 

Page 55 of 68



 
City of Palmer, Alaska: AM No. 21-059 Page 2 of 2 

Attachment(s):  
1. Employment Agreement Acteson 

 
Summary Statement/Background:  
 
After a comprehensive search for a city clerk and thorough interviews, the City Council has offered the position 
to Ms. Shelly Acteson. It is the wish of the City Council and Shelly Acteson to enter into an employment agreement. 
The City Council is authorizing the Mayor, on behalf of the city, to execute and do all other necessary acts to enter 
into an employment agreement with Ms. Acteson. 
 
Administration’s Recommendation:  
 
Approve Action Memorandum No. 21-059. 
 
 
 
 
 
  

Page 56 of 68



City of Palmer 
Employment Agreement 

 
This is an Agreement made and entered into by and between Shelly Acteson hereinafter called 
“Employee”, and the CITY OF PALMER, an Alaska municipal corporation, hereinafter call the 
“City”. 
 
This Agreement is based upon the following premises: 
 

A. The City desires to employ the services of Shelly Acteson as City Clerk of the City of 
Palmer, in accordance with the terms of its Home Rule Charter and this contract. 
 

B. It is the desire of the City Council to provide certain benefits, establish certain conditions 
of employment and to set working conditions for Employee. 
 

C. It is the desire of the City Council to: 
a. secure and retain the services of Employee and to provide inducement for her to 

remain in such employment, 
b. make possible full work productivity by assuring Employee’s morale and peace of 

mind with respect to future security, 
c. act as a deterrent against malfeasance or dishonesty for personal gain on the part of 

the Employee, and 
d. provide a just means for terminating Employee’s services at such a time as she may 

be unable fully to discharge her duties or when City may desire to otherwise 
terminate her employment. 
 

D. Employee desires to accept employment as City Clerk for the City. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants herein 
contained, the parties hereto agree as follows: 
 
Section 1.  Duties. 
 
City hereby agrees to employ Employee as City Clerk of the City to perform the functions and 
duties specified in the City Charter, this Agreement, the City Code, the job description for the 
position of City Clerk and to perform such other legally permissible and proper duties and 
functions as the City Council may from time-to-time assign. 
 
Section 2.  Term. 
 
A. Nothing in this Agreement shall prevent, limit, or otherwise interfere with the right of the 

Employee to resign at any time from her position with the City, subject only to the 
provision set forth in Section 3, Paragraph A and B of this Agreement. 

Page 57 of 68



B. Nothing in this Agreement shall prevent, limit, or otherwise interfere with the right of the 
City Council to terminate the services of Employee at any time, subject only to the 
provisions set for in Section 3, Paragraph C of this Agreement. 
 

C. Employee agrees to remain in the exclusive employee of the City until November 1, 2024, 
unless sooner terminated by the City or Employee. 
 

D. In the event the parties agree in writing, this Agreement may be extended, by amendment, 
on the same terms and conditions as herein provided, for additional periods of up to three 
(3) years. 

 
Section 3.  Termination and Severance Pay. 
 

A. In the event Employee voluntarily resigns the City Clerk position with the City before 
expiration of the term of employment, then Employee shall give the City two (2) months’ 
notice in advance.  Such notice must consist of work hours; leave in any form, fashion, or 
increment, will not be counted towards the notice period.  Provided that such notice is 
given, there will be no breach of this Agreement by reason of said resignation, and 
Employee shall not be responsible for any damages hereunder. 
 

B. In the event Employee is terminated by the City Council before expiration of the aforesaid 
term of employment and during such time that Employee is willing and able to perform the 
duties of City Clerk, then, in that event, the City agrees to pay Employee, in addition to her 
accrued benefits (e.g. personal leave), a lump sum cash payment equal to two (2) months’ 
aggregate salary in lieu of any and all other damages or monies that Employee might claim, 
provided, however, that in the event Employee is terminated because of any illegal act 
involving personal gain to her, then in that event, City shall have no obligation to pay the 
aggregate severance sum designated in this paragraph. 
 

C. In the event the City at any time during the employment term reduces the salary or other 
financial benefits of Employee in a greater percentage than an applicable across-the-board 
reduction for all City employees, then, in that event, Employee may at her option, be 
deemed to be “terminated” at the date of such reduction. 

 
Section 4.  Salary 
 

A. City agrees to pay Employee for her services rendered pursuant hereto an annual salary of 
$91,000.00 payable in installments on the City’s regular payroll cycle. 
 

B. Except as otherwise provided herein, City agrees to increase said salary and/or other 
benefits of Employee in such amounts and to such an extent as the City Council may 
determine which is desirable to do so on the basis of an annual performance review. 
 

Page 58 of 68



Section 5.  Hours of Work. 
 
It is recognized that Employee must devote a great deal of her time outside normal office hours to 
business of the City.  Normal office hours hereunder shall be construed to mean a 40-hour work 
week during daylight hours, when possible. 
 
Section 6.  Dues and Subscriptions. 
 
City shall budget and pay the professional dues and subscriptions of the Employee necessary for 
her continuation and full participation in professional associations and organizations necessary and 
desirable for her continued professional certifications, professional participation, growth, 
advancement, and for the good of the City. 
 
Section 7.  Professional Development. 
 
City may budget and pay the travel and subsistence expenses of Employee for professional and 
official travel, meetings, and occasions as may be authorized by the City from time to time.   
 
Section 8.  Personal Leave. 
 
Employee shall accrue, and have credited to her personal account, personal leave at the same rate 
as other classified employees of the City. 
 
Section 9.  Normal Retirement System. 
 
Employee shall be covered under the City retirement system. 
 
Section 10.  Other Terms and Conditions of Employment. 
 
All applicable provisions of the City Charter and Code, and regulations and rules of City (except 
as provided in this agreement) relating to personal leave, retirement and pensions system 
contributions, holidays, and other fringe benefits and working conditions, except Palmer 
Municipal Code Chapters 4.40: Grievances and 4.50: Disciplinary Action and Termination, as they 
now exist or hereafter may be amended, also shall apply to Employee as they would to other 
employees of City. 
 
City will provide employee with a City vehicle for a period of sixty (60) days to assist with her 
move to the area as prescribed by City Council.  
 
Employee has been offered a relocation lump sum payment of $8,000.00 towards moving 
expenses.   Payment of the relocation incentive will be made upon your establishment of a 
permanent residence as prescribed by City Council.  If Employee resigns or is terminated within 

Page 59 of 68



12 months of her hire date, Employee will be required to reimburse the City of Palmer a pro-rated 
amount of the relocation lump sum payment.   
 
Section 11.  General Provisions.  
 
A. The text herein shall constitute the entire agreement between the parties. 

 
B. This Agreement shall become effective commencing November 1, 2021 and supersedes 

previous agreements between City and Employee. 
 

C. Except as otherwise provided, this Agreement cannot be changed or modified except by an 
agreement in writing signed by the Employee and duly authorized by the City Council and 
signed by the Mayor and Employee.  This instrument and all appendices and amendments 
hereto embody the entire agreement of the parties. 
 

D. All notices, requests, demands and other communications hereunder shall be in writing, and 
shall be deemed to have been duly given if duly delivered, or if mailed, first class United States 
certified or registered mail, postage prepaid: 

a. by the City to the Employee at such address as she may from time to time indicate in 
writing to the City, and 

b. by the Employee to the Mayor at the City’s address. 
 

E. Both parties have provided input into drafting this Agreement and agree that this Agreement 
shall not be construed against either party as drafter. 
 

F. This Agreement shall be construed and enforced in accordance with the laws of the State of 
Alaska and the City of Palmer, and venue shall be in Palmer, Alaska, only. 
 

G. This Agreement may be executed in duplicate originals, both of which when so executed and 
delivered shall be deemed to be an original, but such duplicate originals shall together 
constitute but one and the same instrument.   
 

H. Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of Alaska and the City of Palmer and 
any litigation brought shall be in Palmer, Alaska. Employee expressly waives any rights she 
might otherwise have as provided in Alaska Rules of Civil Procedures to remove any action 
from Palmer, Alaska. 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the City of Palmer, an Alaska municipal corporation, has caused by 
proper action this Agreement to be signed and executed in its behalf by its Mayor and the 
Employee has signed and executed this Agreement, both in duplicate.   
 
 
Date ___________________    ___________________________ 

Page 60 of 68



       Shelly M. Acteson, Employee 
 
       CITY OF PALMER, ALASKA 
 
 
Date ___________________    ____________________________ 
       Edna B. DeVries, Mayor 

Page 61 of 68



Page 62 of 68



_______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska:   August 28, 2021, Regular Meeting                                                                                                    Page 1 of 6 

 City of Palmer, Alaska 
City Council Minutes 

Regular Meeting 
August 24, 2021 

A. CALL TO ORDER

A regular meeting of the Palmer City Council was held on August 24, 2021, at 7:00 p.m. in the Council 
Chambers, Palmer, Alaska.  Mayor DeVries called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m.  

B. ROLL CALL

Comprising a quorum of the Council, the following were present: 
Edna DeVries, Mayor Sabrena Combs, Deputy Mayor 
Julie Berberich (video conference) Brian Daniels (video conference) 
Richard W. Best  Jill Valerius (video conference) 
Steve Carrington 

Also in attendance were the following: 
 John Moosey, City Manager   Michael Gatti, City Attorney 
 Nichole Degner, Interim City Clerk  Kimberly Green, Human Resources 
 Gena Davis,  
 Pam Whitehead, Recording Secretary (telephonically) 

C. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
The Pledge of Allegiance was performed.

D. APPROVAL OF AGENDA
1. Approval of Consent Agenda

a. Resolution No. 21-029 AEPS Phase ## FAA Grant R1
b. Resolution No. 21-031 TW November FAA Grant
c. Action Memorandum No. 21-048 Professional Legal Services 2021
d. Action Memorandum No. 21-049 Country Garden Farms LLC
e. Action Memorandum No. 21-050 HDL Contract Amendment TW N Design Project
f. Action Memorandum No. 21-051 HDL Contract Amendment AEPS Phase II R1

2. Approval of Minutes of Previous Meetings
a. July 27, 2021, Special Meeting
b. July 27, 2021, Regular Meeting

Main Motion: To Approve Agenda, Consent Agenda, and Minutes 
Moved by: Combs 
Seconded by: Carrington 
Vote: Unanimous 
Action: Motion Carried by roll call vote. 

E. COMMUNICATION AND APPEARANCE REQUESTS: None.

F. REPORTS

1. City Manager’s Report

Page 63 of 68



_______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska:   August 28, 2021, Regular Meeting                                                                                                    Page 2 of 6 

City Manager Moosey: 
• reported briefly regarding agenda item 2020 Financial Audit, commending Gina Davis and her staff 

on a job extremely well done; 
• reported new City personnel:  Jude Bilafer, Public Works Director; Jackie Andrus, Public Works 

Administrative Assistant; Jeannette Sinn, promoted to Deputy City Clerk; Cotton Gore, Community 
Development Recreational Operations Supervisor; and Kristin Elieff, Administrative Assistant to City 
Manager; 

• advised of the need for a new city vehicle for winter plowing; following further discussion and 
clarification, City Manager Moosey will have an Action Memorandum on the agenda for the next 
meeting. 

• Responded to Council Member questions. 
 
2. Mayor’s Report 
Mayor DeVries: 
• encouraged everyone to attend the Alaska State Fair; commended Deputy Mayor Combs for the 

great Parade last Saturday. 
 
3. City Clerk’s Report: 
City Manager Moosey: 
• Reported regarding the election equipment testing and election security; 
• Spoke to the City of Palmer’s purchase of five new voting machines which match the State and 

Borough voting equipment made by the Dominion Corporation; outlined the election process. 
 
4. City Attorney’s Report: 
City Attorney Gatti: 
• Spoke to options to consider on securing the purchase of a new snow plow truck. 
 
G. AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION: 
 
Mayor DeVries opened Audience Participation at 7:20 p.m. 
 
Ms. Lilahlee Borland, city resident, testified raising major concerns regarding the Dominion voting 
machines. 
 
Mr. Mike Coons spoke to being attacked by members of Moms for Social Justice for voicing their 
concerns at City Council meetings.  He contributes to Palmer’s economy and even though he lives 
outside city limits, has a right to be an advocate for conservative voices.  Noted for the council members 
that don’t listen because he is not a resident, shows good reason why they should be replaced.  He will 
continue to speak up on issues that he feels a need to voice his opinions and will call on others to do so 
as well.  (Mr. Coons submitted his written comments in full to the City Council) 
 
Ms. Cindy Hutchins, testified raising major concerns over the Dominion voting machines and election 
integrity. 
 
Ms. Jackie Ivey GoForth, testified about the Democrats in power not caring about the people, only power 
over the people; spoke to what’s happening in Afghanistan and the humanitarian crisis for which they 
don’t seem to care. 
 
There being no others coming forward, Mayor DeVries closed Audience Participation at 7:34 p.m. 
 
H. PUBLIC HEARINGS:  None. 
 

Page 64 of 68



_______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska:   August 28, 2021, Regular Meeting                                                                                                    Page 3 of 6 

I.  UNFINISHED BUSINESS:  None. 
 
J.  NEW BUSINESS:  
 
1. Committee of the Whole:  Presentation of the 2020 Financial Audit (note: action may be taken by the 

Council following the committee of the whole) 
 
Main Motion: To enter into Committee of the Whole. 
Moved by: Combs 
Seconded by: Carrington 
Vote: Unanimous 
Action: Motion Carried by roll call vote. 

[The Council entered Committee of the Whole at 7:30 p.m.; exited at 7:57 p.m.] 
 
Presentation: 
Joy Mariner, serving as the Audit Partner on the City financial statements and audit of the City award 
programs (CARES Act), presented the overall results of the 2020 Financial Audit.  They are an independent 
auditing firm hired by the City to perform an independent audit.  They found no problems and commended 
the Finance team for a phenomenal job; also commended the City Council for being careful and adhering to 
the rules about how they approved the use of the CARES money.  She then went on to explain the 
Financial Statement Audit Opinion in more detail. 
 
There being no questions, Mayor DeVries thanked Ms. Mariner on behalf of the City Council for the very 
thorough job. 
 
The Council exited Committee of the Whole at 7:57 p.m. and reconvened the Regular Meeting. 
 
Main Motion: To accept the 2020 Audit Report as presented. 
Moved by: Combs 
Seconded by: Best 
Vote: Unanimous 
Action: Motion Carried by roll call vote. 
 
2. Resolution No. 21-030, Changes to Fee Schedule MTA Events Center. 
 
City Manager Moosey provided a staff report related to Resolution No. 21-030 and requested approval as 
presented. 
 
Main Motion: For approval of Resolution No. 21-030 as presented. 
Moved by: Combs 
Seconded by: Daniels 
Vote: Unanimous 
Action: Motion Carried by roll call vote. 
 
3. Resolution No. 21-032, Appropriating CSLFRFA ARPA Funds. 
 
Main Motion: For approval of Resolution No. 21-032. 
Moved by: Combs 
Seconded by: Valerius 
Vote: Unanimous 
Action: Motion Carried by roll call vote. 

Page 65 of 68



_______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska:   August 28, 2021, Regular Meeting                                                                                                    Page 4 of 6 

 
K. RECORD OF ITEMS PLACED ON THE TABLE: 
Ms. Degner reported the following items placed on the table:  1) 2020 Audit Book.  
 
L. AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION: 
 
Mr. Mike Coons, spoke to election integrity, encouraging absentee ballots are well-tracked using 
signature verification and making sure everything is verified before separating the envelope from the 
ballot. 
 
Ms. Jackie GoForth testified regarding election integrity raising strong concerns regarding the Dominion 
voting machines, noting they can be entered into through the internet by anyone who has the password.  
She also testified concerning her research that Covid deaths are being reported at a higher number than 
they actually are. 
 
Ms. Cindy Hudgins, testified that she heard FEMA is offering money ($8,000) to individuals to pay for the 
funerals of family members who have died from Covid.  She also testified further in opposition to the 
Dominion voting machines, noting she has no faith in the upcoming city election if these machines are 
used. 
 
Mr. Mike Chmielewski shared conversations at the Alaska State Fair with Governor Dunleavy, 
Commissioner Adam Crum, and Football Player Mark Schlereth, all saying that vaccinations are the best 
defense against the Delta variant of the virus; recommended if you have questions about the vaccine to 
speak to people who are knowledgeable – AHSS booth at the Fair is offering vaccinations, but it’s also a 
place to ask questions and address concerns. 
 
Mr. Jason Boreland testified in opposition to the Covid vaccine because of the amount of misinformation, 
noting that the FDA (see website) has now deleted from the VECDER what is to be expected from these 
“vaccines;” spoke as someone with massive OSHA training, mask wearing will do nothing to stop the 
virus and suffocating are children in school in order to save them feels very wrong; encouraged the 
Council and our City to do everything in their power to stand against this. 
 
Ms. Lilahlee Boreland testified concerning her and her family’s personal experience with Latent TB and 
the lack of response from public health officials to her calls fearing a Covid co-pandemic; noted the CDC 
website recently stated for 2020 they are basically positive that TB went underdiagnosed, not diagnosed, 
and mistreated because of Covid.  The problem is being fed all this information that fits one narrative 
and when there’s a problem, no public health officials are addressing it or calling back. 
 
Mr. Erik Anderson, spoke to Action Memorandum 21-041, noting he bids contracts for a living, and when 
he looked through the Contract for the Clarifiers, there are a number of things that he questions as a 
citizen, one being why are there a $2.5 Million difference on the same part for the project?  He 
encouraged the Council to read and ask questions before saying yes because sometimes yes doesn’t 
make sense. 
 
Ms. Lee Henrikson spoke to regarding the Cedar Park Developers being upset about the Subdivision 
Agreement that was presented to them and gave a deadline to have it fixed; she inquired about the 
status of that Subdivision Agreement. 
 
There being no others coming forward, Mayor DeVries closed Audience Participation at 8:28 p.m. 
 
 
 

Page 66 of 68



_______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska:   August 28, 2021, Regular Meeting                                                                                                    Page 5 of 6 

Main Motion: To enter Executive Session for subjects that tend to prejudice the 
reputation and character of any person for City Clerk Recruitment. 

Moved by: Combs 
Seconded by: Best 
Vote: Unanimous 
Action: Motion Carried by roll call vote. 
 
Mayor DeVries called a break at 8:30 p.m. to clear the room for Executive Session. 
 
M. EXECUTIVE SESSION: [Not Recorded] 
 
1. Subjects That Tend to Prejudice the Reputation and Character of Any Person - City Clerk Recruitment 

(Note: All city clerk candidates may be discussed during the executive session. Personnel action 
regarding the City Clerk Candidates may be taken following the executive session) 

 
[The City Council entered Executive Session at 8:40 p.m.; exited at 9:35 p.m.] 

 
The Regular Meeting resumed at 9:40 p.m. 
 
Main Motion: To Direct HR to repost the City Clerk position and ask the City Manager to 

bring forward the Ordinance for the Residence Requirements for the City 
Clerk for consideration. 

Moved by: Combs 
Seconded by: Berberich 
Vote: Unanimous 
Action: Motion Carried by roll call vote. 
 
Deputy Mayor Combs clarified that in the job posting to remove the resident requirement from the 
posting with possibly a caveat note that the Council is considering changes to that requirement. 
 
Main Motion: To direct the City Attorney to move forward on reviewing the 

requirements of the position for the 2nd candidate and whether or not 
those requirements are met. 

Moved by: Combs 
Seconded by: Carrington 
Vote: Unanimous 
Action: Motion Carried by roll call vote. 
 
N. COUNCIL COMMENTS: 
 
Council Member Valerius thanked Gina and the Finance Department for doing an outstanding job on 
the Audit Report. 
 
Council Member Daniels spoke in appreciation of all the City Staff for the good work they do; also 
extended thank you to City Clerk Candidate Glenda Worsham for coming. 
 
Council Member Berberich reiterated what has been said about Gina and her staff for their as-always 
excellent work on the Audit; makes her proud to work with the City and the excellent Financial staff.  
Also, congratulations to all the new employees in the City.  Shared meeting a gentleman from Ohio while 
walking her dog in the Matanuska River Park who raved about our Alaska State Fair, noting he’s been to 
a lot of state fairs, but never one as great as this. 
 

Page 67 of 68



_______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska:   August 28, 2021, Regular Meeting                                                                                                    Page 6 of 6 

Deputy Mayor Combs thanked Mayor DeVries for attending the Alaska State Fair Parade on the 
grandstand, noting it was a short parade but also a good parade, not to mention the weather was great!  
She loves the State Fair and spoke to all the new things at the Fair with a lot of new vendors.  Extended 
welcome to all the new employees. 
 
Council Member Carrington also thanked Gina and her staff for the hard work, that to have an audit 
with no findings in a year of Covid/CARES money is very impressive. 
 
Council Member Best asked for Council support with regard to AML Award Nominations for Audits to 
put the City of Palmer’s Finance Department and Director up for any awards upcoming in this next cycle.  
Deputy Mayor Combs spoke in support, noting it would be for the November Conference. 
 
Council Member Best spoke to the allegation at the last meeting made by the public that the City 
Council had breached the Open Meetings Act with members participating in a closed Facebook Group.  
He asked for Council support to direct the City Manager to hire and investigator to review and bring back 
a report to City Council as to any findings pertaining to that allegation. 
Council Member Carrington spoke in support. 
 
Mayor DeVries asked City Manager Moosey to prepare a Certificate of Appreciation for Gina Davis. 
 
O. ADJOURNMENT: 
 
With no further business before the City Council, the meeting adjourned at 9:50 p.m. 
 
APPROVED this 28th day of September, 2021. 
 
              
        ____________________________________ 
        Nichole Degner, Interim City Clerk 
 
______________________________________ 
Edna B. DeVries, Mayor 
 

Page 68 of 68


	2021-1012 Agenda
	Ordinance No 21-017 Modify Residency Requirement
	Ordinance No 21-018 Modify Appointment Process
	Resolution 21-035 2022 Vehicle Purchase Orders
	Action Memorandum 21-056 Bleeding Heart Brewery
	Action Memorandum 21-057 Grant for The Ice Maze
	Action Memorandum 21-058 Alaska State Fair Sluicebox
	Action Memorandum 21-059 City Clerk Acteson
	Council Minutes 2021-0824



